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THE GRAND JUNCTION PLAN OF
CITY GOVERNMENT

According to Lhe writings of James IH. Nankin, an historien and a Cily
Commissioner from 1911 to 1915, the history of Grand Junction and
adjacent territory dnles from Lhe passing of the Ule Indians from whatl
was hnown as the Ute Reservation in western Colorado to the region set
aside Tor them in Ulnh. "The tragic Meeker massacre and Lhe slaughter
of the soldiers under Major Thornburg who had been sent to Agent
Meeker's relief occurred in 1B79. These oulrages sroused Lhe whole
state, maoss meetings were held and Lhe removal of the Indians was
demunded. The Government then Look onclion and by a Lreaty Lhe lndians
surrendered all claim Lo Lhe lands on the Western Slape, receiving
Innds in the Uintah Basin in Utah and cerlain annuilies."

"In the late summer of 188)l Lhe last of Lhe Indians were removed, and
as the land had alreandy been declared public land, the fronlier towns
were crowded with people anxious Lo enter the reservation and secure
Lhe besl locations. Some of Lhese men were advenlurers but many were
real empire builders. During the summer of 1881, a party of
governmenl surveyors had been senl in but they were ordered out when
the Indians threatened trouble."

"At 5:00 a.m. Sepltember 4th, 1881, Lhe bugle was sounded and all were
permitled Lo enter. A Tew pioneers entered Lhe Grand Valley from the
west bul more came from the easl. The base of all supplies was so far
awny that Lhe Tirsl comers could do little more than sltake out their
claims and then relurn Lo Gunnison (er provisions. IL was at Lhis
supply poinl Lhal Governor George Crawflford (who had won his Litle eof
"Governor" during the enrly dnys of Kansas) had an inlerview wilh some
of the men and ioduced William McGinley to relurn as the guide for a
party just Tlormed. Besides the Govermor, Lhis parly consisted of .
D. Mobley, H. R. Warner, Colonel Morris, and S. A. Illarper. They
crossed the Codlorado River on September 22 nnd on the 26th formanlly
located Section 11 as Lhe townsilte and at once began to haul logs for
cabins.” The original Lownsile extended from First Streel Lo 12th
Street and from Soulh Avenue Lo North Avenue.

"On Oclober 10, 1881, the cerlificate for Lhe incorporntion of the

Grand Junction Town Company was drawn and filed. For nearly three
months the lown could hardly be called a town, for nol a slore or even
a saloon existed on Lhe sile. All provisions were brought from

Gunnison or the governmenl canlonmenlk in the Uncompahgre Valley, and
the neanrest post office wos sevenly-five miles distant. Also, there
was still a dread and fear of a renppearance of Lhe Utes."”

"On November 5th, a meeling was held and a pelilion prepared and
circulated asking Lhe governmenl for a poslt office. By common
consent, Lthe name "Grand Junclion" was adopted because the townsite
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was at the junction of the iwo largest rivers in Lhe staole. During
the month of April, 1B82, R. D. Mobley was installed as postmasler of
the new city post office."

"The firsl eleclbtion in the City took place on June 1, 1882, and was
for the purpose of electing a school board for the new district. i.
E. Stroud, 0. P. Russell, nnd W. M. McKelvey wercec elected. The school
house at this Lime was a picket cabin near Lhe corner of Fifth Slreet
and Colorado Avenue. Miss Nannie Rlanin was the first teacher."

"Soon after the school wans eslablished, the citizens were called upon

to vote regarding the incorporation of the Lown. The election was
held June 22, 1882, and G2 voles were caslt for incorporalion with one
vole cansl agsionsl incorporalion. On July 15, 1882, an citizens’

meeting was held on Colorando Avenue to nominake a mayor and trustees
for the new Town of Grand Junclion. N. D, Mobley was the choice fTor
Mayor, bul the next morning €. F. Shnnks was nominated in opposition
ond was c¢lecled becoming L1he firsl Mayor of Grand Junclion. P.IL.
Weslmoreland was elecled City Clerk, and A.A. Miller, J. M. Russell,
G. W. Thurslton, and W. F. Gerry were elecled Truslees."

"As the day of Lhe county eleclion of 18BBZ2 drew near, party lines were
forgotten in Lhe desire Lo gel men who would be favorable to division
of Gunnison County. As Grand Junction was Lhe only polling place
wilthin a radius of fiflecen miles, over 1,100 voles were casl. Mosl of
them were by men working on Lhe railroad grade that was now getling
close to Lhe City. [I. was op eleclion day that quite a perceptible
ecarthquake shock was felt over Lhe valley. During Lhe lalter part of
November, a8 census of the Cily wuas Laken which showed n population of
521. On December 6Lh, Mayor Shanks entered in Lhe land office at
Leadville the subdivision which included Lhe townsite."

"A mass meeting was held on December 28, 1882, for the purpose of
petitioning the legislalure to creale o new county in the western
portion of Gunnison County. W. J. Miller was senl to Denver Lo assisl
in bringing this about. February 11, 1883, the bill creating Mesa
County passed the legislalure and Lhree days later wns signed by Lhe
Governor. On February 21, Governor J. B. Grant paid the new Counily o
visit and was accorded n handsome receplion at Lthe Brunswick Hotel,
which had been compleled and was quile n prelenlious three-story brick
building. Soon after the Governor’s visit he appointed Lthe following
officers Tor Lthe new Counly: M. I.. Allisom, Clerk and Recorder;
Martin Florida, Sherifl[l; Roberl Cobb, County Judge; G. W. Thurston, T.
B. Crawford, and B. T. Carey, Commissioners; J. N. McArthur, Coroner;
S. G. Crandall, Treasurer; A. J. McCune, Surveyor; and William Keith,
Assessor. The Counly Commissioners of Mesa County met wilh Lhose of
Gunnison County in June, 1883, and agreed to assume $7,208 of the
indebtedness of the old counly, and a bond Tor thalt anmount bearing ten
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percenl interest was issued. The first term of the District Court for
the new County was held in January, 1884, and was presided over by
Judge M. B. Gerry."

"In the spring of 1B84, schoul bonds te the amount of $10,000 were
voted and a school building was ready for the fall term of school.
Before this time, the Honorable James W. Bucklin, who had been elected
to the legislature, had urged the Federal Government to establish an
institution for Lthe education of the Indians. The Government
responded by establishing Teller Inslitue, located about one mile east
of the Cily on an Ulract of 160 acres donaled by Lhe citizens. I
remained for many years a prominent Indian School. The school was
Tinally withdrawn and has since been replaced by the Slate Home and
Training School."”

On May 31, 1985, a specinl census for the Lown of Grand Junclion wns
completed by John €. Montgomery, Commissioner of the Census, which
showed n populantion of 378 ans Tiled in the oflfice of Lhe Secrelary of
State in Denver. By Lhe year 1890, the population was 2,030. Under
the provisions of the Colorado General Staltules, Section 3363, Grand
Junction was enlilled to be advanced to the grade of a City of the
second class. The Board of Trustees deemed Lthe change of grade
desirable and adopled an ordinance on March 10, 1891, dividing the
City inlo four wards with two anldermen being elecled from each ward.

Over the course of the nexlL eighleen years, the City had only vain
hopes and unfulfilled promises for Cily improvemenlks. The NHonorable
James W. Bucklin explnined in nn article published October, 1911, in
the Annals of the Amcrican Academy of Politicnl and Social Science,
LhalL the two wards lying south of Main Street had about one-fourlh of
the electors and nine oul of Lhe len salpons of the City, yel they
had one-hall of all the Aldermen. "This condilion was inlolerable,
and strenuous eflorts were made from Llime-to-time to creale anolher
ward north of Main Street. All these efforts failed becanuse the City
Council simply refused Lo consider Lhe public welfare, and Lhere was
no method of compelling such consideratian.” By this Lime (early
1909), the populalion was approximalely 7,000.

At the regular City Council meeting Febrvary 9, 1909, a petition
signed by 322 persons was submilled to the City Council calling for a
Charter Convention. The petition requested that the proposal be
submitted to a vole of Lhe qualified electors of the Cily aut a Special
Election to be held on April 6, 1909, pursuant to Lhe provisions of
Article XX of the Conslilution of the Siale of Colouorade. A Commiltee
of Lhree members of the Council, W. C. Boyer, J. C. Plank, and A. W.
Drew, were appoinled Lo invesligate and reporlt on the merits of Lhe
petition. The Special Committee reported back on February 24, 1909,
as lollows: "We, Lthe undersigned Commitlee herewilh submit our report
on the question of the petition presented to Lhis Council asking for a
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special election to be held on April the 6th, 1909, submitting Llhe
question of a Charter Convenlion Lo & vote of the voters of said City,
and also requesting this Council Lo pass an Ordinance calling for said
eleclion.”

"In as much as over three hundred voters of the City have signed this
pelition asking Lhat this election be held we deem it proper to submit
the question to the volers of said City and while your Committee
consider it an unnecessary expense to introduce this Ordinance above
referred to and publish same slill we believe that the exlra
precaution of having Lhe matter properly before Lhe people by passing
this ordinance will justify Lhe expense atlached Lhereto."”

"Your Committee furlher begs leave to state that we are opposed to a
Charler Convenlion and do nolt endorse Lhe introduction of said
petition in any manner and submit therefor the following reasons:

~ Firsl--1In order Lo gel Lthis mallter before the people il will
require at least three eleclions, one to be held April the 6Lh and if
voted upon favorably another to be held Tor the eleclion of twenly-one
taxpayers to [frame a Charler and a third to be held that the people
mpy adopt or reject Lhe Charler ss framed by said members.

Second--The law provides ns follows: ‘But if Gthe said
Charter be rejected Lhen wilthin thirty days Lhereafler twenly-one
members of a new Charler Convenlion shall be elected at a special
election Lo be called as above in said City and they shall proceed as
above Lo frame a Charter, which shall in like manner and to the like
end be published and submilled Lo n vote ol snid voters for approvsl
or rejection. 1T again rejected Lhe procedure herein designated shall
be repeated (ench specinl eleclion for members of a new Charler
Convenltion, being wilhin thirty days after each rejecltion) until a
Charter is finnlly approved by a majorily by Lhose voting thercon.’

Third-~Tt would nlso seem to your Committee that inssmuch as
there nare a great many matters of vital inlerestl to this community
that will be brought up within the next Llwelve months thal this
question of a Charter Convention, which can be adopted at any time
upon Lthirty days notice should be allowed to rest for at least that
length of Lime and a Council be elected at the spring election by the
people unconfronted by Lhe idea that Lhere is a possiblility of their
offices being merged into o commission form of government.

Fourth--Your Committee also desires Lo report that tLhey
consider Lthe expense antlached Lo the adoplion of s Charter form of
government would be very large and would malerially increase Lhe rate
of taxation and wilh a very probanble chance of Lhe present form of
municipal government remaining unchanged.
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Fifth--Your Committece also desires to state that it has
looked into the article of the Constitution which is the authority for
this eclection and can find no reference in Lhe title of the act
wherein the cities of Lhe first and second class are referred {o and
your Committee firmly believes thal in so much as the body of soid act
refers to cities of the State of Colorado other than the City and
County of Penver that said act is unconstitutional and an election
held thereunder could be of no force and effect.”

The Committee’s report was accepled by the Council and thereafter
Ordinance No. 155 entitled "AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE SUDMISSION
OF A PROPOSAL FOR A CHARTER CONVENTION TO THE VOTE OF THE QUALIFIELD
ELECTORS OF TIE CITY OF GRAND JUNCTION AT A SPECIAL ELECTION TO RE
KELD AT THE TIME OF THE NEXT GENERAL CITY ELECTION, APRIL 6, 1909."

Quoting from the Illonorable James W. Buchlin: "For four years
immediolely preceding Lhe first charter vote, the city had been
continuously in the hands of Republican and Democratic machines.
Pretending to fight each other they were alwnys in close alliance.
Jusl prior Lo the first charler election, these machines had called
separate primaries, but after the charter movement, recalled their
action and made a formal alignment. ilp to that time Lhey had been
overwhelmingly dominanl, and behind them were men loudly professing
party anlliance, bul 'whose political principles have always been 1in
harmony with the Inlerests."”

"What gave vilality and force Lo our renctionary governmenl were nol
these machines or men, bul Lhe saloon and public service corporations,

that is, Lhe favor sceking Inlerests. The Electric Lighl Plant had
been able to secure a franchise in which on attempt was made to
prevent compelition. This was as vicious a T[Tranchise as could be

drawn, and public talk was full of charges of corruption. Afterwards
the council entered inlo an exorbitant Len-year contracl with the
Franchise Company for lighting for the city, notwithstanding another
company was ready Lo make o much more favoruble contract. No
opportunily was given the compeling company Lo make good."

"A street car franchise was granted conlaining no adequale protection
of the city’'s interests. Citizens who appeared before the council
asking that the righls of the city be protecled were given but scanty
consideralion, and their requests denied."

"When women of the cily nppeared before the council asking that the
law agaipnst vice be better enforced, they were calmly told to apply to
the courts."

"The waters of the two rivers which flow by the cily contain more or
less mlkali in solution, is hard, and frequently muddy. For more Lhan
twenty years Llhe cily hus been trying to gel mountain water, pure and
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soft from the hills. This saction was prevented by the reactionaries,
who after a 13 years war, could not prevent municipal ownership of our

water plant. After such municipal ownership, when the Interests no
longer demanded bad water, Lhe reaclionaries changed fronk, electing
machine men pledged Lo mountain water. But they had made good.

Thousands of dollars were pasid by the reacltionary governments +to
specinl attorneys and engineers to gelt mountain water, most of which
was wasted. Bonds to construct these works were hawked about, but
could not be sold. In ways too numerous to mention, the money of the
cily was wansted, and ils finnncial credil impaired.”

"It was oul of such condiltions that the city sawoke one day and
determined 1o change the entire system. Arrayed against the proposed
charter were 0nll the stand-pat and reactionary forces, the Public
Service Corpornlions, the Saloon Inlerests, the political machines of
both political parlies, Lhe cily council and city officials, most of
the judges and clerks of eleclion wilh special policemen appointed for
each polling place, together willh two daily newspapers controlled by
such dinleresls. Supporting the charler were all Lhe churches, the
independenl and progressive republicans and democrals, the socimlists,
single taxers and Chamber of Commerce, the leading daily newspaper,
the labor organizations and a majority of the thinking element. It
wns a baltle royal and the whele matier wos thoroughly thrashed out in
the newspapers, in the churches, and on the stump. Dy these means Lhe
people were Lhoroughly educnled aund acled wilh unusual intelligence
and caulion. At the election four-fifths of all precincls were
cnrried for the Charter, Lhe Lolal vote casl being 1514 for, and 1089
againsi adopling a Charter. Afterwards Lhe progressives nominated 21
delegales to the Charler Convenlion consisting of 7 members of
organized labor, 6 bankers, 1 lawyer, 1 physician, members of all
churches, socialisls, single Llaxers, progressive republicans and

democrats, and the leading business and renl estate men. The
reactionaries also nominaled a Licket, bhut withdrew it aflter finding
it would have no show of elecltion. The Charter was therefore
formulaled and wrillen by LLhe progressives and adopted by an

overwhelming mojority alt tLhe polls."

The June 22nd, 1909, Cily Council Minutes conlain an abslract showing
the results of Lhe canvass of election returns held June 8, 1909, "for
the election of the members of Lhe Charter Convention resullted in the
election of the following members, they having received majorities
ranging from 736 votes Lo 7565 voles over Lhe number of votes c¢ast for
any other caundidate or candidales: James W. Bucklin, George R.
Barlon, M. R. DBull, Alfred R. Cullen, William Campbell, William E.
Dudley, W. P. Ela, George W. Flelcher, Ernest M. Gilpatrick, William
C. Herman, Shepherd Il. Hutchinson, Williom H. lLee, W. J. Moyer, C. P.
McCary, John Murphy, Frank Sawyer, Marcus M. Shores, David T. Stone,
Thomas M. Todd, B. W. Vedder, and James Woods."
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The first meeting of the Charler Convention was held on Saturday, June
12, 1909, at 10:00 a.m. at City Ilall. Ench delegate submitted his
Certificale of Election to the City Clerk and each of them took the
Onlth of OlffTice and filed the same with Lhe City Clerk. The delegates
elected James W. Bucklin as Presidenlt, Bostwick W. Vedder was elected
Vice Presidenl, and James Woods was elected Secretary. At their
adjourned meeling at 8:00 p.m. June 12, Lhey consented to meet, unless
olherwise ordered, on each day of Lhe week, excepl Sunday, al 7:30
p.-m. Commiltees were formed and assigned their duties. At the August
6th, 1909, meceting of Lhe Charter Convenlion, the members had
completed the drafting of Lhe Charler. The President and Secretary
were instructed Lo fTile with the City Clerk of the Cily of Grand
Junction "Lhe dockel record and Minules of Lhis Convention." Those
same Minules reflecl the Tollowing Nesoclulion unanimously andopted by
the entire Convention present (18 members):

"RESOLVED, Lhat we express our sincere thanks to the
Honorable James W. Bucklin, Chairman of this Convention
First—=For his fair decisions in his capacity as Chairman,
and for his sincere respect for Lhe opinions of each member
of Lhis Convention.

Second-For the greal smounl of labor he has given to Lhis
Charter, and we recognize Lhal while he wanted a Charler
Lhot would give the people of Lhis cily tolal power Lo
govern tLhemselves Lhat he also wanlted it to be the product
of each and every member ol Lhis Counvenbtion."

The Charter was submitited lo a vote of the people at a Special
Eleclion held Seplember 14, 1909, and was carricd by a majorily vole
of 538. Since its ndopltion in 1909, Lhere have been 22 amendmenls Lo
Lhe Charter. November 2, 1909, was \Lhe T[irst ecleclion held after
adoption of the City Charter. The first Commissioners were Thomas M.
Todd, Bostwick W. Vedder, lerman F. Vorbeck, Stephen J. Scoville, and
Charles K. lHolmburg. Embodied in the Charter adopted in 1909 was the
"headless and non-parlisan preferential ballol.” In the words of Mr.
Bucklin "The Preflerentinl Ballot for c¢ities is a plan Lo restore
majority eleclions and Lrue represenlalive governmentl. It was
originated for und first Tormulated in the Grand Junction Charter."”

The Commission form of governmenl lasted in Grand Junction until
November B, 1921. A vole of the people on the fifth amendment to the
Charter to "Provide for a more represcntalive and effeclive Cily
Government and providing for a City Manager and repealing Sections of
the Chnrter in conllicl herewith” resulled in the Council/Manager
governmenlt of today.
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The lionorable James W. Bucklin stated that the keynote to the Charter
is found in the firsl senlence of its Prefalory Synopsis as follows:
"The intent and purpose of this Charler is to establish a free and
independent Cily, and to restore Lo and vest in the people of the
City, so far as the Constitution of the state will permit, their
natural, inherenl, and inalienable right of local self-government,
with all its powers, duties, and responsibilities." lle further
recited that the purpose of Lhe Charter was to establish a municipaol
democracy. "Every effort wans made by its authors to make our Charter
democrnlliec, Lho mool democralic in Amaerlien.”

Respectfully submitted,

Neva B. Lockhart, CMC
City Clerk
October 22, 1991



